
 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  F e b r u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 5       1 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
February 04, 2025, 6:00 PM 
PenMet Parks District Headquarters - 2416 14th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
 

Call to Order 

Commissioner Roll Call: 

 Present Excused Comment 

Laurel Kingsbury, President    

William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Clerk    

Kurt Grimmer    

Steve Nixon    

Maryellen (Missy) Hill    
 

ITEM 1 President's Report 

ITEM 2 Executive Director's Report 

ITEM 3 Special Presentations 

ITEM 4 Board Committee Reports 

4a. Park Services Committee 

4b. Finance Committee 

4c. Administrative Services Committee 

4d. Recreation Services Committee 

4e. Campaign Committee 

4f. External Committees 

ITEM 5 Public Comments: 

This is the time set aside for the public to provide their comments to the Board on 
matters related to PenMet Parks.  Each person may speak up to three (3) minutes, 
but only once during the citizen comment period.  Anyone who provides public 
comment must comply with Policy P10-106 providing for the Rules of Decorum for 
Board Meetings.  A copy of the policy is available at each meeting and at 
www.penmetparks.org 

ITEM 6 Minutes 

6a. Approval of the January 21, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

ITEM 7 Consent Agenda 

7a. Resolution C2025-005 Approving Vouchers from January 2025 

ITEM 8 Unfinished Business 

- Page 1 -



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  F e b r u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 5       2 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

ITEM 9 New Business 

9.1 Purchasing Resolutions Requiring One Reading for Adoption 

9.1a     Resolution P2025-001 Authorizing the Executive Director to 
Sign the Agreement for District Headquarters HVAC System 
Upgrades with Art Anderson 

9.1b    Resolution P2025-004 Authorizing the Executive Director to 
Purchase Vehicles for Park Maintenance and Recreation 
Services  

9.2 Single Reading Resolutions Requiring One Reading for Adoption 

9.3 Two Reading Resolutions Requiring Two Readings for Adoption 

ITEM 10 Comments by Board 

ITEM 11 Next Board Meetings 

February 18, 2025 – Study Session at 5:00 pm and Regular Meeting at 6:00 
pm at PenMet Parks District Headquarters – 2416 14th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, 
WA 98335 

ITEM 12 Executive Session 

12a. Executive Session for the purpose of discussing potential litigation to 
which the agency is likely to become a party when public knowledge 
regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal 
consequence pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (i) 

ITEM 13 Adjournment 

 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS MEETING PROCEDURES  

 

The Board of Park Commissioners encourages the public to attend its Board meetings.  All persons who attend Board 
meetings must comply with Board Policy P10-106 providing for the Rules of Decorum at Board Meetings.  This Policy 
is to preserve order and decorum and discourage conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly 
conduct of Board meetings.  A copy of the policy is available at each meeting and at www.penmetparks.org. 

- Page 2 -



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       1 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 

REGULAR MEETING – MINUTES  

January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM 
PenMet Parks District Headquarters - 2416 14th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
 

Call to Order Time: 6:03 pm 

Commissioner Roll Call: 

 Present Excused Comment 

Laurel Kingsbury, President x   

William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Clerk x   

Kurt Grimmer  x  

Steve Nixon x   

Maryellen (Missy) Hill x   

Quorum: Yes  

 Commissioner moved to amend the agenda to include an Executive Session 
for the purpose of discussing litigation, or potential litigation, to which the agency is, 
or is likely to, become a party when public knowledge regarding the discussion is 
likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110 (i) as item 12a, shifting the Executive Session to Review the 
Performance of a Public Employee. RCW 42.30.110 (g) to item 12b. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Roll Call Vote. Approved unanimously. Motion Carried. 

ITEM 1 President's Report 

 Appreciate attendees from community, values engagement.  

 High volume of public input regarding McCormick Forest project; District will never 
undergo major project decisions without a public process. Goal is to prioritize public 
access to trails and outdoor properties; all input will be considered.  

 Board cannot respond directly during public comment; Executive Director will share 
more during her report.  

 Consent agenda includes a resolution for naming the soccer field at the Recreation 
Center Jarzynka Memorial Field, honoring the inspirational life of Gig Harbor High 
School and University of Washington sports hero Joseph David Jarzynka. Board 
recognizes and thanks Joe’s parents, Sue and Dave Jarzynka, noting there will be 
time to honor Joe during the opening ceremonies of the Recreation Center.  

ITEM 2 Executive Director's Report 

 Executive Director, Ally Bujacich, shares letter from Gig Harbor Lions about 
December toy/gift drive partnership, with 2024 totals: new record 3,836 total gifts 
collected, with PenMet Parks and 3 local Girl Scout troops joining to collect and 
deliver 213 Giving Tree gifts. 

- Page 3 -

Item 6a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       2 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 Family Sweetheart dances will be held at, in partnership, with Ocean 5 on 2/8/25; 
Candy Land theme; unique activities planned, including cotton candy bar, cards for 
Ocean 5 arcade play to use at dance or save for later, professional photos, more. 

 High demand for Senior Programs continues; debut of free Senior Bingo, with 
Olympic Civic Services, every other Friday at District Headquarters; Senior Trips 
planned include January’s Tacoma Home & Garden Show, February’s Musical 
‘Hamilton’ in Seattle with 2 dates due to high demand, and March’s LeMay Car 
Museum in Tacoma.   

 Youth Basketball season is off to very smooth start; 86 teams held first practice 
last week; significant increase over 2024; Skills/Drills clinics returned based on 
community feedback; in-person coaching clinics, games begin this weekend.  

 McCormick Forest Multi-Use Trails project continues to be of high interest; public 
process is an important part of any project, looking forward to public engagement.  

o A dedicated project page has been created on our website to share 
information, resources, opportunities to be involved; printed flyer also 
available at sign-in desk tonight.  

o Project summary, included on webpage, planned at Rotary Bark Park and 
McCormick Forest Park, west side of Bujacich Road, is to improve and 
provide multi-use trails based on community’s top priorities, including trails for 
walking, hiking and biking. These priorities emerged from the PROS (Parks, 
Recreation, Open Space) plan, which we follow, and other sources that have 
provided insight into feedback gathered, statistically valid surveys, listening 
sessions and interviews. More information can be found in PROS plan. 

o Project has not started yet but an anticipated schedule and public input 
opportunities are listed on webpage; total project budget is $550,000, 
funded through the District Capital Budget, with a scope to develop 1st 
phase of community use trails. 

o Some common questions are about impact to existing trails; the project will 
take into account existing site features, trees of significance, environmentally 
sensitive impacts; new trails not to affect existing trails or dog park. 

o The webpage will be updated to include Frequently Asked Questions, more 
information as the project advances, how to sign up as an Interested Party, 
be added to the mailing list, and opportunities to say involved. Looking 
forward to engaging with the community in next few months, when the  
project begins.  

 Capital Project Manager, John Adams, and Park Services Director, Sue O’Neill, 
review Construction Change orders approved including  #13 to Jody Miller for 
Recreation Center, #1-4 to Woodland Industries for Stormwater Ditch Maintenance, 
#1 for Lakeridge Paving for Narrows Park Access Road, 1-2 to Soundview 
Landscape & Sprinkler for Mini-golf project.  

 Board Comment: Attended grandson’s basketball practice; he loves his coach; 
whole family enjoyed their time; parents were in PAA and PenMet growing up too.  

ITEM 3 Special Presentations 

3a. Special Events Report - Fall/Winter 2024 

- Page 4 -

Item 6a.

https://penmetparks.org/current-projects/mccormick-forest-multi-use-trails/


 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       3 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 Recreation Services Director, Tracy Gallaway, introduces Special Events 
Coordinator, Ryan Sparks, who reviews Fall and Winter events. 

 Scarecrow Festival on 10/5 was very well attended; highlights include 
Pumpkin Launcher to raise Rec Center scholarship funds; food drive with 
Kiwanis; showcase for local makers market and nonprofits; 21 participants 
in Scarecrow Contest; crafts; hayrides; bounce house, petting zoos (Miracle 
Ranch); Peewee Rodeo; Pumpkin Carving Demo; food vendors.  

 Review of sponsors, partners, budget and revenue summaries, survey 
results, which include expanded of shuttle service and parking; maintenance 
staff request for better line management, additional staff radios and 
equipment during event; contingency plan for inclement weather; improved 
management plan for closing gates when parking is totally full; additional 
family-friendly activities. 

 Trunk or Treat on 10/25 back for 2nd year; goals to provide safe, fun 
alternative to trick or treating prior to Halloween for community, engaging 
partners and distributing treats. 

 Review of sponsors, partner, budget and revenue summaries, survey 
results, which include how to provide estimates for volume of candy; timing 
felt right at 2 hours; location did not allow for line management; exploring 
new location, additional food and beverage options.  

 Cookies with Mr. & Mrs. Claus on 12/14 was a fun, festive event, hosted in 
partnership with PSD (Peninsula School District) and Kiwanis food drive.  

 Review of sponsors, partner, budget and revenue summaries, survey 
results include looking at expanding time slots as attendees appreciated 
being able to take their time; exploring other locations; possibly adding 
option for Breakfast with Santa.  

 Board Comments: Appreciation for excellent kick off to the season, great 
execution. Kiwanis used to do Breakfast with Santa events, they may be 
interested in helping or sharing information.  

 Board Question: How did food vendors do at Scarecrow Festival? Answer: 
Every vendor sold out.  

3b. November 2024 Financial Report 

 Finance Director, Jessica Wigle, reviews financial report and presentation. 

3c. Recreation Center Fees 

 Recreation Services Director, Tracy Gallaway, notes at the 11/19 Study 
Session included proposed operational plans and fee structure, the Board 
asked for further pricing considerations for family pass, open gym options. 

 Updated proposed changes now include pass for in-district residents at no 
charge for walk track, nominal charge for out-of-district; open gym pass 
tiered pricing updated for out-of-district; also includes single use, 10 or 20 
punch options; and family passes not limited to # of members, as long as 
they reside in same household.  

 Board Questions: Will scholarships be available for the passes as well? 
Will assistance be available both in and out of district? Answer: Yes, 

- Page 5 -

Item 6a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       4 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

financial assistance applications will be accepted for passes, for all ages 
and all locations or residences.  

 Board Comment: Appreciation for doing this work; not convinced it is a 
perfect solution, but it is a good start and seems fair, all things considered. 
Interested in feedback. Staff: Agree this is a starting point, look forward to 
hearing from community and staff, willing to make adjustments based on 
feedback.  

ITEM 4 Board Committee Reports 

4a. Park Services Committee  

 Meeting held 1/14/25; heard from Pierce County Conservation Futures 
program grant application; update on mini golf, theming elements cost and 
rankings as budget did not support all 12 elements; updates on Rec Center 
project; Fox Island Fishing Pier update, with changes to be added including 
automatic locks for gate; update on FI Fishing pier project; change will be 
added to include auto locks for gate; going forward will meet 4th Friday each 
month, next scheduled for 2/28/25. 

 Board Questions: How many of the 12 theme elements did the budget 
cover? Could sponsors be considered for excluded element if 
Commissioners can engage interested groups, how soon would funds be 
needed? Answers: 11 of 12 were included, only the net shed at $15,000 – 
20,000 was not.  Funding structure is a combination of general fund and 
fundraised sponsor dollars. Staff will send Commissioner information on the 
net shed.   

4b. Finance Committee – has not met since last meeting 

4c. Administrative Services Committee – has not met since last meeting 

4d. Recreation Services Committee – has not met since last meeting 

4e. Campaign Committee – has not met since last meeting 

4f. External Committees  

 Commissioner Nixon and President Kingsbury attended TNAC (Tacoma 
Narrows Airport Commission) meeting on 1/14, will meet every other month; 
main items were election of officers, primary review and recommendations 
for County Executive in support of a planned Airport Day in 2025. 

ITEM 5 Public Comments: 

 Comment by: Cyndy Dillon, Gig Harbor 

 Comment by: Chris Reanier, Fox Island 

 Comment by: Chris Ammann, Gig Harbor 

 Comment by: Bobbie Busch, Gig Harbor 

 Comment by: Ben Sleeter, Gig Harbor, Narrows Baseball Club  

 Comment by: Betty Lilienthal, Gig Harbor 

 Comment by: Patrick Ammann, Gig Harbor 

ITEM 6 Minutes 

6a. Approval of the January 7, 2025 Study Session Minutes 

- Page 6 -

Item 6a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       5 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

6b. Approval of the January 7, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 Commissioner moved to adopt the minutes as presented. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Roll call vote. Unanimously approved. Motion carried.  

ITEM 7 Consent Agenda 

7a. Resolution C2025-003 Approving Asset Names for Certain PenMet Parks 
Recreation Center Campus Facilities 

7b. Resolution C2025-004 Authorizing the Executive Director to Sign the 
Conservation Futures Application - Receiving Agency Affidavit 

 Commissioner moved to adopt the consent agenda as presented. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Roll call vote. Unanimously approved. Motion carried. 

ITEM 8 Unfinished Business – None 

ITEM 9 New Business 

9.1 Purchasing Resolutions Requiring One Reading for Adoption 

9.1.a     Resolution P2025-002 Authorizing the Executive Director to Sign 
the Construction Contract for District Headquarters Construction 
Corrections with J.A. Morris Construction, LLC 

 Commissioner moved to adopt the resolution as presented. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Park Services Director, Sue O’Neill, provides presentation. 

 Roll call vote. Unanimously approved. Motion carried. 

9.1.b    Resolution P2025-003 Authorizing the Executive Director to 
Purchase Mini Golf Theming Elements 

 Commissioner moved to adopt the resolution as presented. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Park Services Director, Sue O’Neill, provides presentation. 

 Board Question: How much time is needed to secure donor funds 
in time to purchase the element not included in budget? Answer: 1 
– 2 weeks; vendor waiting on payment to begin production.  

 Roll call vote. Unanimously approved. Motion carried. 

9.2 Single Reading Resolutions Requiring One Reading for Adoption 

9.2.a     Resolution R2025-001 Designating Certain Individuals as 
Authorized Signers at District Financial Institutions 

 Commissioner moved to adopt the resolution as presented. 

 Commissioner seconded. 

 Finance Director, Jessica Wigle, provides presentation. 

 Roll call vote. Unanimously approved. Motion carried. 

9.3 Two Reading Resolutions Requiring Two Readings for Adoption - None 

ITEM 10 Comments by Board 

- Page 7 -

Item 6a.



 
 
 

 

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 5       6 | P a g e  

 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335 
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org 

www.penmetparks.org 

 Thanks to the public for participation; appreciation of time and effort to come out,  
listen and give input; invites emails to contact for further discussion. 

 Special thanks to Sue & Dave Jarzynka.  

ITEM 11 Next Board Meetings 

 February 4, 2025 – Study Session at 5:00 pm and Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm at 
PenMet Parks District Headquarters – 2416 14th Ave NW, Gig Harbor, WA 98335 

ITEM 12 Executive Session 

12a. Executive Session for the purpose of discussing litigation or potential 
litigation to which the agency is or is likely to become a party when public 
knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal 
or financial consequence pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (i). 

 The estimated length of time for the Executive Session is 30 minutes. The 
Board is not expected to take final action following the Executive Session. 

 The Board is starting the Executive Session at 7:45 pm. 

 The Board ended the Executive Session at 8:16 pm.  

12b.  Executive Session to Review the Performance of a Public Employee. RCW 
42.30.110 (g). 

 The estimated length of time for the Executive Session is 30 minutes. The 
Board is not expected to take final action following the Executive Session. 

 The Board is starting the Executive Session at 8:17 pm. 

 The Board ended the Executive Session at 8:28 pm. 

ITEM 13 Adjournment Time: 8:28 pm. 

 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS MEETING PROCEDURES  

 

The Board of Park Commissioners encourages the public to attend its Board meetings.  All persons who attend Board 
meetings must comply with Board Policy P10-106 providing for the Rules of Decorum at Board Meetings.  This Policy is to 
preserve order and decorum and discourage conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of 
Board meetings.  A copy of the policy is available at each meeting and at www.penmetparks.org. 

 

Approved By the Board on ______________________________ 

_______________________________        ______________________________ 

Laurel Kingsbury, Board President  William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Board Clerk 

__________________________________ 

Attest: Amanda Walston, Board Secretary 

 

- Page 8 -

Item 6a.

http://www.penmetparks.org/


____________________________________________________ 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

RESOLUTION NO. C2025-005 
 

Resolution C2025-005 
 

 

APPROVING VOUCHERS FROM JANUARY 2025  

 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Park Commissioners 
approved the 2025 operating budget in Resolution RR2024-010 and the 2025 capital 
budget in Resolution RR2024-011 on November 19, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, expenditures are within the current resource projections at the fund level; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director or his or her designee has certified that the materials 
have been furnished, the services rendered, or the labor performed as described, and 
that each claim represents a just, due, and unpaid obligation against the District;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park 
District that vouchers in the amounts and for the period indicated on Attachment "A" be 
approved for payment. 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on February 4, 2025. 
 
 
 

___________________________________                        ______________________________________ 

Laurel Kingsbury, Board President  William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Board Clerk 
      
 
__________________________________ 
Attest: Ally Bujacich 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 9 -

Item 7a.



 

 

 

Attachment A to Resolution C2025-005 
 

 
 
For the period beginning 01/07/2025 and ending 01/07/2025 
 
Voucher # 250101001 through # 250101019 is approved for payment in the amount of 
$121,535.12. 
 
and 
 
For the period beginning 01/14/2025 and ending 01/14/2025 
 
Voucher # 250102001 through # 250102022 is approved for payment in the amount of 
$27,956.31. 
 
and 
 
For the period beginning 01/21/2025 and ending 01/21/2025 
 
Voucher # 250103001 through # 250103030 is approved for payment in the amount of 
$1,246,632.79. 

 
and 
 
For the period beginning 01/28/2025 and ending 01/28/2025 
 
Voucher # 250104001 through # 250104041 is approved for payment in the amount of 
$98,938.55. 

 
 

- Page 10 -

Item 7a.



 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 
 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 
 
Through:  Ally Bujacich, Executive Director 
 
Through:  Sue O’Neill, Director of Park Services 
 
From:  John Adams, Project Manager 
 
Date:  February 4, 2025 
 
Subject: Resolution P2025-001 Authorizing the Executive Director to Sign the 

Agreement for District Headquarters HVAC System Upgrades with 
Art Anderson 

 
 
Background 

The Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Park Commissioners passed 
Resolution RR2023-015 adopting the 2024 Annual Capital Budget and Capital 
Improvement Plan, which allocated a total project budget of $414,000 for the District 
Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade.  
 
Roof top units were replaced in the spring of 2024. The Consultant will provide design 
and construction administration services to evaluate, modify and upgrade the HVAC 
system to properly condition the District Headquarters building for its current use. 
Upgrading the existing HVAC system was not included in the scope of work for the 
building renovation.  
 
The project budget is summarized below: 
 

Project Budget Summary  

Roof top units – Completed Spring 2024 $31,457.10 

A&E Design Costs $81,903.00 

Estimated Construction Costs $300,639.90 

  

Total project budget $414,000.00 

 
 
 

- Page 11 -

Item 9.1



 

 

On October 25, 2024 staff issued a Request for Qualifications to Upgrade the HVAC 
System at PenMet Parks District Headquarters to 30 firms registered on the MRSC 
Roster in accordance with Policy P40-102: Purchasing Policy. Four statements of 
qualifications were received by the deadline of November 12, 2024. A selection 
committee was formed to evaluate submittals. Art Anderson was identified as the most 
qualified firm. District staff negotiated an agreement in an amount not to exceed 
$81,903.00, excluding Washington State Sales Tax, which is within the amount 
appropriated to complete the District Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade. 
 
 
Policy Implications/Support 
 
1. The Board approved Resolution RR2023-015 adopting the 2024 Annual Capital 

Budget and Capital Improvement Plan, which allocated funding for the CRC-1 
Replace HVAC System. 

2. Policy P10-101: Board Policy and Procedures states, in part, that the Peninsula 
Metropolitan Park District is accountable to its citizens for its use of public dollars. 

3. Completing this project will advance District goals and objectives, including: 

 Effectively manage and maintain assets to preserve existing infrastructure to 
provide parks and recreation opportunities for the community. 

 Create meaningful places. 

 Balanced financial accountability. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board pass Resolution P2025-001 authorizing the Executive 
Director to sign the agreement for the District Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade 
with Art Anderson in an amount not to exceed $81,903.00. 
 
 
Staff Contact 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please contact Sue O’Neill 253-330-2638 or via 
e-mail at soneill@penmetparks.org. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit A: Resolution P2025-001 
 

- Page 12 -

Item 9.1



__________________________________________________ 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

RESOLUTION NO. P2025-001 
 

Resolution P2025-001 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT FOR 
DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS HVAC SYSTEM UPGRADES WITH ART ANDERSON 

 
WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Park Commissioners 
allocated funding for the District Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade in the 2024 
Capital Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners passed Resolution RR2023-015 
adopting the 2024 capital budget and capital improvement plan including the District 
Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade budget in the amount of four hundred fourteen 
thousand and 00/100 dollars ($414,000.00); and 
 
WHEREAS, District staff followed Policy P40-102: Purchasing / Procurement Policy to 
procure professional services for the District Headquarters HVAC System Upgrade 
using a Request for Qualifications (RFQ No. 2024-01B) process; and 
 
WHEREAS, Art Anderson was identified as the most qualified firm, and 
 
WHEREAS, staff negotiated an agreement with Art Anderson in an amount not to 
exceed eighty-one thousand, nine hundred three and 00/100 dollars ($81,903.00) for 
the pre-design, design, permitting, bidding, construction, and closeout phases; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners, that the Executive Director be 
authorized to execute the agreement for the design of the District Headquarters HVAC 
System Upgrade with Art Anderson in an amount not to exceed eighty-one thousand, 
nine hundred three and 00/100 dollars ($81,903.00), excluding applicable WSST, in 
substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The forgoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on February 4, 2025. 

 
___________________________           _________________________ 
Laurel Kingsbury, Board President  William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Board Clerk      
      
 
___________________________ 
Attest: Ally Bujacich 

- Page 13 -

Item 9.1



1.

A.

B.

C.

D.

- Page 14 -

Item 9.1



  
 

E.

 
 

2.  

 

 

 
 

 

3.  

A. 

 
 
B. 

 

C. 

 
 
D. 

 
 

4. 

 

- Page 15 -

Item 9.1



  
 

5. 

 
 
6.  

 
A. 

 
 
B. 

 
 
C. 

 
 

7.  
 
A. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

- Page 16 -

Item 9.1



  
 

 
 

B. 

 

8.  
 

A. 

 
 

B. 

 
 

9. 

 

  

 

- Page 17 -

Item 9.1



  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 18 -

Item 9.1



  
 

 

10. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

11. 

 
 

12. 

 
 

13. 

 

- Page 19 -

Item 9.1



  
 

14. 

 
 

15. 

 
 

16. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  

- Page 20 -

Item 9.1



  
 

 

 
 

 

 

Consultant shall design project to modify existing system and add necessary HVAC components to 
properly condition the HQ Building for its current use.  

Consultant will undertake project tasks including, but not limited to:  
 

TASK -1    Pre-design (1-1.5 Months) 
 

Scope of Work: 
 Evaluate existing HVAC system and conditions at the renovated HQ Building 
 Assessment of existing conditions  
 Evaluate options and make recommendations within project budget.  
 Analysis of existing: Electrical, HVAC/Mechanical, Plumbing, and other Design Elements.  
 Coordinate with District staff on recommendation and cost associated with total improvements 

needed for facility to comply with all current building codes/conditions to fully meet the 
expectations of PenMet Parks and our Community 

 Analysis to include scope and fee structure. 
 
TASK 2   Design (2 - 4 months) 
 

Scope of Work: 
 Provide Schematic Design for review.  
 Provide Design Documentation including Project Scope, Specifications, Plan Sets, and 

Contract Development that may include bid alternates and additives.  
 Provide probable cost of construction (Cost Estimate). 
 Attend meetings and provide presentations with District Staff to discuss progress and receive 

feedback for final design elements.  
 Provide Plans, Specifications and final contract development for Permitting and Bidding.  
 Provide All documents necessary for putting project out to bid. 
 Assist as required with the Bidding Process and Award of Construction Contract 

 
TASK 3   Construction Administration (2 - 3 months) 
 

Scope of Work: 
 Oversee Construction 
 Attend pre-construction meeting and keep minutes 
 Provide support necessary to manage the project effectively and efficiently. This will include 

permitting support needs/requirements, review and approve submittals, site visits to confirm 
design elements during construction, responding to requests for information, review of change 
order requests and pricing, minimum of biweekly OAC meetings during construction, reviewing 
project schedules and recommending updates, commissioning support, verify testing air 
balancing, final inspections and close out documentation. 

 

- Page 21 -

Item 9.1



  
 

Scope of Work:
  
  
  
  
  

 
Deliverables: 
 Existing Conditions Site assessment, load calcs, alternatives, recommendations  
 Schedule  Milestones, from Site Assessment through Construction Documents  
 Subconsultants  Required to provide a complete Design for Construction 
 Design  Schematic, Design Documents, 100% Construction Documents, Bid Documents 
 Permitting  Pierce County, others  
 Level of Bid Support - Prepare bid documents, assist with advertise to bid, assist with bid 

evaluations and contractor selection. 
 Construction Management 

o Assist with construction management  RFIs, Submittals, Schedule, Budgets.  
o Attend OAC meetings at least bi-weekly  
o Attend Construction Kickoff and Milestone completion on site meetings  anticipate 3-4 

meetings 
 Construction Inspection support - assist with construction inspections  
 Project Closeout - Punchlist, Commissioning, Occupancy, Warranty, O&Ms  
 If required/requested  meetings with elected officials, PenMet Parks staff, the community, 

and project stakeholders.  
 

 

 

 

 

 
     

  
     
     

      
     
     

       
 

     
      

 
 

     
  

    
  

     

- Page 22 -

Item 9.1



- Page 23 -

Item 9.1



 

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO 
 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 
 
Through:  Ally Bujacich, Executive Director 
 
Through: Sue O’Neill, Director of Park Services 
 
Date:  February 4, 2025 
 
Subject: Resolution P2025-004 Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Purchase Park Maintenance and Recreation Services Vehicles 
 
 
 
Background/Analysis 
 
PenMet Parks evaluates vehicle and equipment needs from a functional and 
performance perspective annually. With the opening of the Recreation Center and 
expanding recreation services programs, additional vehicles are needed to support 
increased grounds and facility maintenance requirements along with recreation services 
needs including senior programs and mobile recreation.  
 
Quotes for the vehicle purchases were requested from five area dealerships.  Three 
dealerships provided quotes. Vehicles will be purchased from the dealership with the 
lowest total cost. New vehicles will allow PenMet Parks to continue delivering efficient 
parks maintenance and recreation services for our community. 
 
Funding Analysis 
 
The adopted 2024 Capital Budget included $275,000.00 for two new maintenance and 
operations vehicles and two new recreation services vehicles.  PenMet Parks followed 
the procurement guidelines in Policy P40-102: Purchasing Policy to secure quotes for a 
2024 Ford F350 Truck (4WD), a 2024 Ford Transit 250 Cargo Van, a 2024 350 Ford 
Transit 15 passenger Van, and a 2024 Ford Transit 12 passenger/Cargo Van. This 
vehicle purchase supports operational needs to maintain consistent, high-quality parks 
and facilities and to provide recreational programs.   
 
 
 

- Page 24 -

Item 9.1



 

 

The total cost of $251,725.89 for the four vehicles is within the capital budget 
appropriation. The table below lists the purchase price for each vehicle.  
 

Item 
Total 

Purchase 
Price 

2024 Ford F350 Truck (4WD) $59,987.00  

2024 Ford Transit 250 Cargo Van $54,584.13  

2024 350 Ford Transit 15 passenger Van $66,383.30  

2024 Ford Transit 12 passenger/Cargo Van AWD $70,771.46 

 

Policy Implications/Support 

 
1. Purchasing the identified equipment will advance District goals and objectives, 

including: 
a. Effectively manage and maintain assets to preserve existing infrastructure 

to provide parks and recreation opportunities for the community. 
b. Balanced financial accountability. 

2. The Board passed Resolution RR2024-011 adopting the 2024 Annual Capital 
Budget and Capital Improvement Plan which appropriates $275,000.00 for two new 
maintenance and operations vehicle and two new recreation services vehicles. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board pass Resolution P2025-006 Authorizing the Executive 
Director to Purchase Park Maintenance and Recreation Services Vehicles. 
 
 
Staff Contact 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please contact Sue O’Neill at 253-330-2638 or 
via e-mail at soneill@penmetparks.org. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit A:  Resolution P2025-004 Authorizing the Executive Director to Purchase 

Park Maintenance and Recreation Services Vehicles 

- Page 25 -

Item 9.1



____________________________________________________ 

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District 
 

RESOLUTION NO. P2025-004 

Resolution P2025-004 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO PURCHASE PARK 

MAINTENANCE AND RECREATION SERVICES VEHICLES 
 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Park Commissioners 
adopted the goal to effectively manage and maintain assets to preserve existing 
infrastructure to provide parks and recreation opportunities for the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners passed Resolution RR2024-011 adopting 
the 2025 Annual Capital Budget and Capital Improvement Plan which appropriates 
$275,000.00 for two new maintenance and operations vehicle and two new recreation 
services vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, PenMet Parks followed Policy P40-102: Purchasing / Procurement Policy to 
solicit pricing for new equipment using the competitive quote process  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT  
 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners that the Executive Director be 
authorized to negotiate the terms and conditions and sign the agreements to purchase 
two new maintenance and operations vehicle and two new recreation services vehicles 
as described in Exhibit A through area dealerships in an amount not to exceed 
$251,725.89. 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District held on February 4, 2025. 
 
 
__________________________________                 __________________________________ 

Laurel Kingsbury, Board President  William C. (Billy) Sehmel, Board Clerk 
      
 
__________________________________ 
Attest: Amanda Walston 
  

- Page 26 -

Item 9.1



 

 

 
 

Exhibit A to Resolution P2025-006 
 

Item 
Total 

Purchase 
Price 

2024 Ford F350 Truck (4WD) $59,987.00  

2024 Ford Transit 250 Cargo Van $54,584.13  

2024 350 Ford Transit 15 passenger Van $66,383.30  

2024 Ford Transit 12 passenger/Cargo Van AWD $70,771.46 

 

- Page 27 -

Item 9.1



- Page 28 -

Item 9.1



- Page 29 -

Item 9.1



- Page 30 -

Item 9.1



- Page 31 -

Item 9.1



- Page 32 -

Item 9.1



- Page 33 -

Item 9.1



- Page 34 -

Item 9.1



- Page 35 -

Item 9.1



- Page 36 -

Item 9.1



- Page 37 -

Item 9.1



ALL WARRANTIES, IF ANY, BY A MANUFACTURER OR SUPPLIER OTHER THAN SELLER ARE THEIRS, NOT 
SELLER'S AND ONLY SUCH MANUFACTURER OR OTHER SUPPLIER SHALL BE LIABLE FOR PERFORMANCE 
UNDER SUCH WARRANTIES. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES WHICH EXTEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION ON PAGE 
1 HEREOF. BUYER HAS INSPECTED THE VEHICLE AS FULLY AS HE OR SHE DESIRES PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO 
THIS CONTRACT. SELLER NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY PERSON TO ASSUME FOR IT ANY LIABILITY 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF ANY GOODS OR SERVICES. BUYER AGREES THAT SELLER SHALL HAVE NO 
LIABILITY FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, DAMAGES TO PROPERTY, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE, LOSS 
OF TIME, LOSS OF PROFITS, OR INCOME, OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL DAMAGES. 

UNLESS SELLER FURNISHES BUYER WITH A SEPARATE WRITTEN WARRANTY MADE BY SELLER ON ITS OWN 
BEHALF OR BUYER PURCHASES AN EXTENDED SERVICE WARRANTY FROM SELLER WITHIN 90· DAYS OF 
PURCHASING THi! VEHICLE, SELLER HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 
ANY IMP LIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR P URPOSE ON ALL GOODS 
AND SERVICES SOLD BY SELLER. A SEPARATE "AS IS'1 S�LLER WARRANTY DISCLAIMER IS INCLUDED AS PART 
OF THIS TRANSACTION AND. IS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE. 
Buyer agrees that this Agreement includes all of the terms and conditions on all pages of this Agreement hereof, that 
this Agreement cancels and supersedes any prior agreement including oral agreements, and as of the date below 
comprises, with any retail installment sale contract, the complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement 
relating to the subject matters covered by this Agreement. Buyer, by signing this Agreement, acknowledges that Buyer 
has read its terms and has received a true copy of this Agreement 

H Buyer Is buying the Vehicle for cash (this Includes a Buyer arranging Buyer's own financing from a party other than 
seller), this Agreement Is not binding upon either Seller or Buyer until signed by an authorized Seller representative. 

H Buyer is buying the Vehicle in a credit sale transaction with Seller evidenced by a signed retail Installment sate 
contract, this Agreement is binding when the retail Installment sale contract is signed, but will not remain binding If a 
third party finance source does _not agree to purchase the retail Installment sale contract executed by Buyer and Seller 
based on this Agreement. See paragraph 12 on page 3 of this Agreement. 

0 BUYER HAS READ ALL PAGES OF THIS AGREEMENT AND AGREES TO ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS· IN THIS 
AGREEMENT. 

BUYER SIGNS X DATE 01/29/202'5
.. 

CO-BUYER SIGNS X 
NIA 

NIA. -.DATE 
If checked, the following statement applies to this transaction. 
0 YOU, THE BUYER, MAY CANCEL .THIS TRANSACTION AT AN Y TIME PRIOR TO MIDNIGHT OF THE THIRD BUSINESS 
DAV AFTER THE DATE OF THIS TRANSACTION. SEE THE ATTACHED NOTICE OF CANCELLATION FORM FOR AN 
EXPLANATION OF THIS RIGHT. 

MANAGER'S APPROVAL DATE Oli'29/2025

(Must Be Accepted By An Authorized Representative of the Seller) 

Q.AWFDRM NO. LAWWA-B020_e (Aov.111201 
Bu-rJn,·ii·als • 0202.o Tke A•1ttoldt Qnd Reynolda Comp11ny J- --

N/A 
Co-Buyer Initials__ Page 2 of 3 

lliERE ARE NOWAAIWITIES, EXPRESS OR IMPI.IED. AS 
TO CONTENT 0fl FITNESS FOR PURPOSE OF THIS FOfW, 
CONSW\'OUR O<WN �00\JHSe.. 

- Page 38 -

Item 9.1


	Top
	Item 6a.	Approval of the January 21, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
	20250121-RM-MINUTES

	Item 7a.	Resolution C2025-005 Approving Vouchers from January 2025
	20250204-RM-C2025-005-ApprovingJanVouchers-RESO

	Item 9.1	Purchasing Resolutions Requiring One Reading for Adoption
	20250204-RM-P2025-001-HQ-HVAC-Upgrades-ArtAnderson-MEMO
	20250204-RM-P2025-001-HQ-HVAC-Upgrades-ArtAnderson-RESO
	20250204-RM-P2025-001-2024-01B-Contract-ArtAnderson-BOC
	20250204-RM-P2025-004-PurchaseParkMaintEquipment-MEMO
	20250204-RM-P2025-004-PurchaseParkMaintEquipment-RESO
	20250204-RM-P2025-004-PurchaseOrderVehicleQuotes

	Bottom

